
AGENDA 
 

CITY OF PEARLAND 
PLANNING & ZONING COMMISSION 

 
 
 
 
 

   Henry Fuertes      Linda Cowles 
       P&Z CHAIRPERSON         P&Z VICE-CHAIRPERSON 
 
 

COMMISSIONERS 
 

  
Neil West      Ginger McFadden   

  

          
             

Matthew Hanks       Mary Starr 
 

 
 
 

Daniel Tunstall 
 
 
 

 

   APRIL 15, 2013         6:30 p.m. 

In accordance with the Texas Open Meeting Act the Agenda is posted for public information, at all 
times, for at least 72 hours preceding the scheduled time of the meeting on the bulletin board 
located at the front entrance of the City Hall, 3519 Liberty Drive. 



 
P&Z Regular Meeting 

April 15, 2013 
Page 1 of 5 

 

AGENDA – REGULAR MEETING OF THE PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION OF 
THE CITY OF PEARLAND, TEXAS, TO BE HELD ON MONDAY, APRIL 15, 2013, AT 
6:30 P.M., 2nd Floor CONFERENCE ROOM, CITY HALL, 3519 LIBERTY DRIVE, 
PEARLAND, TEXAS. 
 
 
I. CALL TO ORDER 
 
II. APPROVAL OF MINUTES 

 
Approve the Minutes of the April 1, 2013, p.m. P&Z Regular Meeting, held at 6:00 
p.m. 
 

III. EXCUSE ABSENCE 
 

 Excuse absence of Chairperson Henry Fuertes and Commissioner Ginger 
McFadden from the P&Z Regular Meeting of April 1, 2013. 
 

IV. NEW BUSINESS 
 

A.  CONSIDERATION & POSSIBLE ACTION – CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT NO. 
CUP 2013-02 

 
A the request of Esteban V. Rodriguez, applicant for Condor Auto Care Center, 
LLC., owner, for approval of a Conditional Use Permit to allow for Minor Auto 
Repair in the General Business (GB) zone, on property located at 7929 Broadway, 
more specifically described property, to wit: 
 
Legal Description: Plat of survey of a 0.6984 acre tract being a part of lot “A” of 
Westgate Park a subdivision of 9.575 acres of land out of lots 47 and 48 of the 
Allison Richey Gulf Coast Home Company Subdivision of Section 19 of the H. T. & 
B. Railroad Company survey, Abstract 243, Brazoria County, Texas, according to 
the map or plat thereof recorded in Volume 16, page 320, of the plat records of 
Brazoria County, Texas 
 
General Location:  7929 Broadway St., Pearland, TX 

 
B. CONSIDERATION & POSSIBLE ACTION – CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT NO. 

CUP 2013-03 
 

A request of Lyle Henkel, Terra Associates, applicant for HEB Grocery Co, LP – 
Todd Piland, owner, for approval of a Conditional Use Permit to allow for Auto 
Wash – Self Service in the General Business (GB) zone, on property located at the 
northwest corner of Broadway and Pearland Pkwy., more specifically described 
property: 

 



 
P&Z Regular Meeting 

April 15, 2013 
Page 2 of 5 

 

Legal Description: Being a tract containing 22.7711 acres of land situated in the 
Thomas J, Green Survey, abstract Number 198, Brazoria County, Texas, and 
being out of and a portion of the called 118.755 acre tract as described in the deed 
to Marion E. Sattegest, et al, recorded in Volume 1421, Page 25, of the Brazoria 
County Deed Records, Brazoria County, Texas. 

 
General Location: Northwest corner of Broadway (FM 518) and Pearland 
Parkway 

 
C. CONSIDERATION & POSSIBLE ACTION – ZONE CHANGE APPLICATION     

NO. 2013-06Z 
 

A request of Richard Gonzalez applicant and owner, for approval of a zone change 
from the Single Family R-2 zone to the Neighborhood Services (NS) zone on the 
following described property, to wit: 
 
Legal Description: Being a .460 acre tract of land out of the H.T. & B. R.R 
Company Survey, section 11, abstract 239, City of Pearland, Brazoria County, 
Texas.  
 
General Location:  4608 Walnut St.  

 
D. CONSIDERATION & POSSIBLE ACTION – ZONE CHANGE APPLICATION NO. 

2013-07Z 
 

A request of Christy Smidt (Kerry G. Gilbert & Assoc.), applicant and Beeman E. 
Strong (for the Settegast Family), owner, for approval of a zone change from the 
Planned Development (PD) zone to the Planned Development (PD) zone for 
31.3165 acres, to wit: 
 
Legal Description: Being a 30.7935 acre (1,341,365 square foot) tract of land  
situated in the Thomas J. Green Survey, Abstract Number 198 in Brazoria County, 
Texas, and being out of and a part of the called 118.775 acre tract of land 
described in deed to Marion E. Settegast, et al as recorded in Volume 1421, Page 
25 of the Brazoria County Deed Records, said 31.3165 acre tract of land. 
 
 
General Location:  Approximately 700’ North of Broadway on Pearland Pkwy 

 
 

E. CONSIDERATION & POSSIBLE ACTION – REPLAT OF LOT 2, BLOCK 1 OF 
KIRBY COMMONS 

 
A request by Chris L. Hendrick, applicant, on behalf of 518 @ Kirby, LLC, owner 
for approval of a Partial Replat of Lot 2, Block 1 of Kirby Crossing. The site is 

Decision 
Date: 

4/19/2013 



 
P&Z Regular Meeting 

April 15, 2013 
Page 3 of 5 

 

located near the northwest corner of Kirby and Broadway on the following 
described property, to wit 
 
Legal Description:  A Subdivision of 1.333 acres in the T.C. & B.R.R. CO. Survey, 
section 3, Abstract No. 678, in the City of Pearland, Brazoria County, Texas. 
 
General Location: Located at the northwest corner of Kirby Dr. and Broadway St. 

 
F. CONSIDERATION & POSSIBLE ACTION – PRELIMINARY PLAT OF 

COVINGTON ESTATES 
 
A request by John English of Rekha Engineering, Inc., applicant and R. West 
Development, Inc., owner, for approval of the Preliminary Plat of Covington 
Estates, a 20 lot subdivision on a 9.64 acre tract of land, generally located at 2014 
Hillhouse Road. 
 
Legal Description: A tract of land containing 4.82 acres known as Tract 20-A, 
situated in Lot 20 of the Allison Richey Gulf Coast Home Company Subdivision, 
Abstract No. 506, as recorded in Volume 2, Page 23 of the Brazoria County Map 
Records, and; 
 
A tract of land containing 4.82 acres known as Tract 20, situated in Lot 20 of the 
Allison Richey Gulf Coast Home Company Subdivision, Abstract No. 506, as 
recorded in Volume 2, Page 23 of the Brazoria County Map Records. 
 
General Location: 2014 Hillhouse Road 
 

G. CONSIDERATION & POSSIBLE ACTION –  WAIVER OF DECISION OF FINAL 
PLAT OF PRESERVE OF HIGHLAND GLEN SECTION 2 

 
A request by Rene Rodriguez, from LJA Engineering, applicant, on behalf of 
Beazer Homes Texas, LP, owner, for approval of a Waiver of Decision on a Final 
Plat of Preserve at Highland Glen, Sec. 2, a 143 lot single-family residential 
subdivision, to wit 
 
Legal Description: Being 36.5 acres of land located in the Derril H.M. Hunter 
Survey, Abstract 36, Harris County, Texas, more particularly being a portion of a 
called 56.233 acre tract conveyed to Beazer Homes Texas, L.P., by an instrument 
of record in File No. 20110092185, Official Public Records of Said Harris County, 
Texas (H.C.O.P.R.R.P.), being a portion of a called 61.217 acre tract conveyed to 
Beazer Homes Texas, L.P., by an instrument of record in File No. 20110092165, 
H.C.O.P.R.R.P., an undivided one-half (1/2) interest in said 56.233 acres and said 
61.217 acres conveyed to Lennar Homes of Texas Land and Construction, Ltd by 
instrument of record in File No. 20110407994, H.C.O.P.R.R.P. 
 

Decision 
Date: 

4/19/2013 



 
P&Z Regular Meeting 

April 15, 2013 
Page 4 of 5 

 

General Location: A half mile northeast of the intersection of Hughes Road and   
Pearland Parkway. 

 
H. CONSIDERATION & POSSIBLE ACTION –  FINAL PLAT OF PRESERVE OF 

HIGHLAND GLEN SECTION 2 
 

A request by Rene Rodriguez, from LJA Engineering, applicant, on behalf of 
Beazer Homes Texas, LP, owner, for approval of a Final Plat of Preserve at 
Highland Glen, Sec. 2, a 143 lot single-family residential subdivision, to wit 
 
Legal Description: Being 36.5 acres of land located in the Derril H.M. Hunter 
Survey, Abstract 36, Harris County, Texas, more particularly being a portion of a 
called 56.233 acre tract conveyed to Beazer Homes Texas, L.P., by an instrument 
of record in File No. 20110092185, Official Public Records of Said Harris County, 
Texas (H.C.O.P.R.R.P.), being a portion of a called 61.217 acre tract conveyed to 
Beazer Homes Texas, L.P., by an instrument of record in File No. 20110092165, 
H.C.O.P.R.R.P., an undivided one-half (1/2) interest in said 56.233 acres and said 
61.217 acres conveyed to Lennar Homes of Texas Land and Construction, Ltd by 
instrument of record in File No. 20110407994, H.C.O.P.R.R.P. 
 
General Location: A half mile northeast of the intersection of Hughes Road and   
Pearland Parkway. 
 

I. CONSIDERATION & POSSIBLE ACTION –  PRELIMINARY PLAT OF 
BUSINESS CENTER PLANNED DEVELOPMENT TRACTS C-3 AND C-4 
 
A request by Eric D. Johnson, P.E. from IDS Engineering Group, applicant, on 
behalf of Joe Moody, owner, for approval of a Preliminary Development Plat of 
Business Center Planned Development Tracts C-3 and C-4. 
 
Legal Description: Being 3.35 acres of land, in the H.T. & B.R.R. Co. Survey, A-
300, Brazoria County, Texas, being a portion of the 30.583 acre tract described in 
the deed from Compass Bank to Parkside 59/288, Ltd. Recorded under Document 
No. 2011012491, in the Official Public Records of Brazoria County, Texas. 
 
General Location: Northwest corner of Business Center Drive and County Road 
59. 
 

J.   DISCUSSION ITEMS 
 

1. Commissioners Activity Report 
2. Next P&Z/Workshop (Cluster Development) – May 06, 2013 
3. Next Joint Public Hearing – May 20, 2013 
 

V. ADJOURNMENT 
 

Decision 
Date: 

4/19/2013 



 
P&Z Regular Meeting 

April 15, 2013 
Page 5 of 5 

 

This site is accessible to disabled individuals.  For special assistance, please call 
Young Lorfing at 281-652-1655 prior to the meeting so that appropriate arrangements 
can be made. 
 
I, Debbie Cody, Administrative Clerk of the City of Pearland, Texas, do hereby certify 
that the foregoing agenda was posted in a place convenient to the general public at City 
Hall on the 12th day of April, 2013, A.D., at 5:30 p.m. 
 
      ________________________________ 
      Debbie Cody, Administrative Clerk 
 
 
Agenda removed  __________________  day of April 2013. 



 

 
 
 
 
 
 

APPROVAL  
 

OF 
 

MINUTES 



 
Minutes of P&Z Regular Meeting 

April 1, 2013 
Page 1 of 4 

 

MINUTES OF THE REGULAR MEETING OF THE PLANNING AND ZONING 
COMMISSION OF THE CITY OF PEARLAND, TEXAS, HELD ON MONDAY, APRIL 1, 
2013, AT 6:00 P.M., CITY COUNCIL CHAMBERS, CITY HALL, 3519 LIBERTY 
DRIVE, PEARLAND, TEXAS. 
 
CALL TO ORDER  
 
P&Z Vice-Chairperson Linda Cowles called the meeting to order at 6:04 p.m. with the 
following present: 
 

P&Z Vice-Chairperson Linda Cowles 
P&Z Commissioner Neil West 
P&Z Commissioner Matthew Hanks 
P&Z Commissioner Daniel Tunstall 
P&Z Commissioner Mary Starr 
 

Also in attendance were:  Director of Community Development Lata Krishnarao, 
Assistant City Manager Mike Hodge, Planner II Ian Clowes, Assistant City Attorney 
Nghiem Doan, Assistant City Engineer Richard Mancilla, and Administrative Clerk 
Debbie Cody. 
 
NEW BUSINESS 

 
CONSIDERATION & POSSIBLE ACTION – PRELIMINARY PLAT OF SOUTHERN 
TRAILS SECTION THIRTEEN 

 
A request by Christy Smidt of Kerry Gilberts and Associates, applicant, on behalf of CL 
Ashton Woods, LP, owner, for approval of a Preliminary Plat of Southern Trails Section 
13, a 36 lot single-family residential subdivision, to wit 
 
Legal Description: Being 8.1 acres of land out of the H.T. & B. R.R. Company Survey, 
Sec. 80, A-564, City of Pearland, Brazoria County Texas, also being out of Allison-Richey 
Gulf Coast Home Company Subdivision as recorded in Volume 2, Page 98 B.C.P.R.  
 
General Location: Approximately 500’ south of the southeast corner of the intersection of 
Kingsley and Walnut Place Ln 
 
Planner II Ian Clowes stated that the Planned Unit Development (PUD) of this subdivision 
was approved on February 23, 2004 and the item being presented is Section Thirteen of 
that PUD, which is the southernmost section.  There were no outstanding items that staff 
asked as a condition of approval.   
 
Motion was made by Commissioner Daniel Tunstall to approve the aforementioned item 
and it was seconded by Commissioner Matthew Hanks. 
 



 
Minutes of P&Z Regular Meeting 

April 1, 2013 
Page 2 of 4 

 

The vote was 5-0 approving the preliminary plat of Southern Trails Section Thirteen. 
 
CONSIDERATION & POSSIBLE ACTION – PRELIMINARY PLAT OF SOUTHLAKE 
SECTION THREE 

 
A request by Rene Rodriguez, from LJA, applicant, on behalf of 518 SCR, LTD, owner, 
for approval of a Preliminary Plat of Southlake Section Three, a 41 lot single-family 
residential subdivision, to wit 
 
Legal Description: A subdivision of 14.485 acres of land located in the H.T. & B.R.R. Co. 
Survey, Sec. 84, Abstract Number 538, City of Pearland, Brazoria County, Texas, being a 
portion of that certain called 315.292 acre tract of land conveyed to 518SCR, LTD. By 
instrument of record in File No. 2011089118, Official Public Records, Fort Bend County, 
Texas (F.B.C.O.P.R.) and in Document No. 2011036869, Official Public Records, Brazoria 
County, Texas (B.C.O.P.R.). 
 
General Location: Approximately three quarters of a mile south of the intersection of 
Broadway and Shelton Ridge Lane.  
 
A motion was made by Commissioner Daniel Tunstall to approve and seconded by 
Commissioner Mary Starr. 
 
Planner II Ian Clowes presented the staff report explaining that this is part of the 
Shadow Creek addendum which was approved in 2006 and is comprised of 
approximately 453 acres of which 300 or so are Southlake.  One of the conditions of 
approval is that a portion of the trail system, which is required for this section, be 
completed or a bond in place prior to submittal of final plat. The second condition is 
finalization and recordation of the plat for Shelton Ridge Lane Phase 2 prior to 
submission of final plat.  There was a request to have the trail system moved in order to 
eliminate need for a bridge.  Commissioner Tunstall expressed concern having not seen 
the Shadow Creek Ranch Planned Unit Development (PUD) and was not comfortable 
ruling on a plat within that PUD without having confirmation of its requirements.  
Questions ensued regarding the width of the lots and also easement in relation to the 
trail on the west side of the property.  Warren Escovy of LJA Engineering was present 
and answered various questions posed by the Commission.  Community Development 
Director Lata Krishnarao explained that the staff was comfortable with the intent of the 
applicant to replace the amenity, that being the trail, and just change the location, still 
providing the connectivity.  She further explained that had this been a major amendment 
to the PUD, the staff would have brought back the Master Plat to the Commission.  The 
criteria used to determine the level of the change was asking what amenities were 
required, what would be the purpose of the amenity and does the change meet that 
intent.  By increasing the length of the trail and just changing the location, the staff felt 
the intention was justified.  She emphasized that if the Commission thought this was a 
major change, the staff could bring back the Master Plat before the Commission. 



 
Minutes of P&Z Regular Meeting 

April 1, 2013 
Page 3 of 4 

 

The motion was amended as an approval upon meeting the aforementioned conditions 
expressed by staff.  Commissioner Mary Starr made the motion and it was seconded by 
Commissioner Matthew Hanks. 
 
The vote was 4-1 approving the preliminary plat of Southlake Section Three with the 
dissenting vote from Commissioner Daniel Tunstall. 
 
CONSIDERATION & POSSIBLE ACTION – PRELIMINARY PLAT OF SOUTHLAKE 
SECTION FOUR 

 
A request by Rene Rodriguez, from LJA, applicant, on behalf of 518 SCR, LTD, owner, 
for approval of a Preliminary Plat of Southlake Section Four, a 52 lot single-family 
residential subdivision, to wit 
 
Legal Description: A subdivision of 13.177 acres of land located in the H.T. & B.R.R. Co. 
Survey, Sec. 84, Abstract Number 538, City of Pearland, Brazoria County, Texas, being a 
portion of that certain called 315.292 acre tract of land conveyed to 518SCR, LTD. By 
instrument of record in File No. 2011089118, Official Public Records, Fort Bend County, 
Texas (F.B.C.O.P.R.) and in Document No. 2011036869, Official Public Records, Brazoria 
County, Texas (B.C.O.P.R.). 
 
General Location: Approximately three quarters of a mile south of the intersection of 
Broadway and Shelton Ridge Lane.  
 
A motion was made by Commissioner Matthew Hanks to approve with the conditions 
indicated by staff of the preliminary plat of Southlake Section Four and seconded by 
Commissioner Mary Starr. 
 
Planner II Ian Clowes presented the staff report, illustrating the maps of future land use.  
He indicated the plat did meet all requirements however there were two conditions for 
approval, that being: 
 

1.  Prior to submittal of a final plat, the plat of Shelton Ridge Lane Phase 2 must be 
finalized and recorded. 

2. Required trail for this section must be completed or a bond be put in place prior 
to submittal of final plat. 

 
There were questions from Vice-Chairperson Linda Cowles regarding Reserve A and 
Reserve B and open space.  Warren Escovy from LJA Engineering explained that it is 
restricted to drainage on the north end of Reserve B and the south end of Reserve A.  
He stated there would also be some open space.   
 
Vice-Chairperson Cowles called for a vote. The vote was 4-1 for approval with the 
dissenting vote from Commissioner Daniel Tunstall. 



 
Minutes of P&Z Regular Meeting 

April 1, 2013 
Page 4 of 4 

 

 
DISCUSSION ITEMS 
 
1. Commissioners Activity Report – Commissioner Daniel Tunstall mentioned a 

discussion with Chairperson Henry Fuertes regarding getting a copy of the Shadow 
Creek Ranch Planned Development (PD) and it was determined that the electronic 
file would be sent to the entire Commission.  Commissioner Tunstall asked if we had 
a current status of Shadow Creek Ranch build-outs as far as number of dwellings 
completed.  Director of Community Development Lata Krishnarao stated that we 
could get those numbers for him.   
 

2. Next P&Z Workshop (Cluster Development) – May 6, 2013 – Community 
Development Director Krishnarao explained that the intent of the workshop would be 
to finalize the draft cluster plan. 

 
3. APA National Conference – Vice-Chairperson Cowles questioned whether there 

would be a quorum for April 15th meeting since 3 commissioners would be at this 
conference and Planner II Clowes highlighted the items that would be on the 
upcoming Joint Public Hearing on April 15th, that being two zone changes and two 
Conditional Use Permits. 
 

4. Next JPH/P&Z Regular Meeting – April 15, 2013 – Administrative Clerk Debbie Cody 
mentioned that the Commission had been polled as to who would attend this 
meeting to confirm if there would be a quorum and the four remaining 
commissioners (those not attending the National Conference) responded 
affirmatively. 

 
ADJOURNMENT 
 
P&Z Vice-Chairperson Linda Cowles adjourned the P&Z Regular Meeting at 6:52 p.m. 
 
These minutes are respectfully submitted by: 
 
 
 
__________________________________ 
Debbie Cody, Administrative Clerk 
 
Minutes approved as submitted and/or corrected on this 15th day of April 2013, A.D.  
 

            __________________________________  
           P&Z Chairperson Henry Fuertes 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

EXCUSE ABSENCE 
 
 
 



 
 
 
 
 

NEW 
BUSINESS 



P&Z AGENDA  
ITEM  

 
 

 
 
 

A 
 
 

 



 
 

JPH 04-15-13 
CUP 2013-02 

Page 1 
 

      

JOINT PUBLIC HEARING AGENDA ITEM 
MEETING OF APRIL 15, 2013 

 

 
 

Conditional Use Permit No. CUP 2013-02 
 

A the request of Esteban V. Rodriguez, applicant for Condor Auto Care Center, 
LLC., owner, for approval of a Conditional Use Permit to allow for Minor Auto Repair 
in the General Business (GB) zone, on property located at 7929 Broadway, more 
specifically described property, to wit: 

 
Legal Description: Plat of survey of a 0.6984 acre tract being a part of lot “A” of  
Westgate Park a subdivision of 9.575 acres of land out of lots 47 and 48 of the 
Allison Richey Gulf Coast Home Company Subdivision of Section 19 of the H. T. & 
B. Railroad Company survey, Abstract 243, Brazoria County, Texas, according to 
the map or plat thereof recorded in Volume 16, page 320, of the plat records of 
Brazoria County, Texas 

 
 General Location: 7929 Broadway St., Pearland, TX 

 
 

APPROVAL PROCESS:  After this Joint Public Hearing, the requested 
Conditional Use Permit application will be considered as 
follows: 

 
Planning and Zoning Commission:         April 15, 2013* 
City Council for First Reading:                May 13, 2013* 
City Council for Second Reading:           May 13, 2013* 
 
 (*dates subject to change) 

 
 
SUMMARY:  Esteban V. Rodriguez, applicant, is requesting approval of a Conditional 
Use Permit (CUP) to allow the operation of a Minor Auto Repair Facility at the above 
referenced location.  The site is currently zoned General Business (GB) and there are 
not currently any business operations ongoing on the site.  The most recent commercial 
use on the site was an auto sales lot which is no longer in operation.  The property has 
an existing residential home structure on site; however the structure is not being used 
as a home and is currently vacant. 
 
 



 
 

JPH 04-15-13 
CUP 2013-02 

Page 2 
 

The property owner is proposing to redevelop the site to be used as a Minor Auto 
Repair facility.  The City’s Unified Development Code does allow a Minor Auto Repair 
Facility in the General Business (GB) zone with the approval of a CUP.  A previous 
CUP for the same proposed use on this site had been approved in January of 2012.  
That CUP was never acted on by the applicant so has now expired.  The applicant is 
now ready to proceed with the opening of his business and is seeking the approval of a 
new CUP. 
 
If the CUP is approved, the site plan process will commence with the Planning and 
Building departments.  A Pre-development meeting was held between staff and the 
property owner to discuss the City’s current regulations for development which will be 
required to be met for this property when redeveloped. 
 
SURROUNDING ZONING AND LAND USES: 
 
 
 

Zoning  Land Use 

North Neighborhood Service (NS)  Commercial 
South Neighborhood Service (NS)  Commercial 
East Neighborhood Service (NS) 

and General Business (GB) 
 Commercial 

West General Business  Commercial/Residential 
 
CONFORMANCE WITH THE UNIFIED DEVELOPMENT CODE (UDC):  As previously 
mentioned, the property is currently zoned General Business (GB).  A breakdown between 
those lot and development requirements and the site current configuration is provided 
below: 
 
   General Business  Existing Site 
Lot Size:   22,500 sq ft   ~30,690 sq ft      
Lot Width:   150’    111.90’ 
Lot Depth:   125’    236.50’ 
Front Setback: 25’    130’ 
Rear Setback: 25’    39’  
Side Setback : 10’    4’/10’ 
 
At the time of development, all aspects of the Unified Development Code (UDC) will be 
required to be met.   
 
PLATTING STATUS:  The property is currently platted as Westgate Park. 
 
CONFORMANCE WITH THE COMPREHENSIVE PLAN:  The current Comprehensive 
Plan (latest update in 2009) indicates Business Commercial for the subject property.  The 
proposed use, a Minor Auto Repair Facility, is a permitted use in the General Business 
zoning district with the approval of a CUP.  Furthermore, as the subject property is currently 



 
 

JPH 04-15-13 
CUP 2013-02 

Page 3 
 

zoned General Business (GB), and that zoning district is a correlating zoning district in the 
City’s Comprehensive Plan for a Business Commercial, the zoning is in compliance with 
the Comprehensive Plan. 
  
CONFORMANCE WITH THE THOROUGHFARE PLAN:  The subject property has 
frontage on Broadway, a major thoroughfare, with a minimum of 120’ right-of-way.  
 
AVAILABILITY OF UTILITIES:  The subject parcel does have access to public water and 
public sewer. 
 
IMPACT ON EXISTING AND FUTURE DEVELOPMENT:  The proposed 
redevelopment of this site is not anticipated to have any negative impacts on existing 
surrounding or future developments.  The traffic impact of the proposed development 
will be reviewed by the City’s Engineering Department at the time of formal site plan 
submittal. 
 
ADDITONAL COMMENTS: This request has been reviewed by the City’s Development 
Review Committee and there are no additional comments from other departments at the 
time of this report. 
 
SITE PLAN CONSIDERATIONS:  A conceptual site plan for the proposed use was 
submitted with the CUP application.  This plan appears to meet the City’s Corridor Overlay 
District regulations.  A complete review will occur at time of formal site plan submittal. 
 
PUBLIC NOTIFICATION:  Public notice, comment forms, and a vicinity map were mailed 
to property owners within 200 feet of the subject property under consideration for the CUP. 
 A legal notice of public hearing was published in the local newspaper, and a notification 
sign was placed on the property by the applicant. 
     
OPPOSITION TO OR SUPPORT OF PROPOSED REQUEST:  Staff has not received any 
comments either in opposition to or in support of the proposed CUP request.   
 
CRITERIA FOR APPROVAL:  When considering an application for a CUP, the Planning 
and Zoning Commission and City Council shall evaluate the impact of the proposed use on 
and its compatibility with surrounding properties and residential areas to ensure the 
appropriateness of the use at the particular location, and shall consider the extent to which: 

(1) The proposed use at the specified location is consistent with the policies 
embodied in the adopted Comprehensive Plan; 

(2) The proposed use is consistent with the general purpose and intent of the 
applicable zoning district regulations; 

(3) The proposed use is compatible with and preserves the character and 
integrity of adjacent developments and neighborhoods, and includes 
improvements either on-site or within the public rights-of-way to mitigate 
development related adverse impacts, such as traffic, noise, odors, visual 



 
 

JPH 04-15-13 
CUP 2013-02 

Page 4 
 

nuisances, drainage or other similar adverse effects to adjacent 
development and neighborhoods; 

(4) The proposed use does not generate pedestrian and vehicular traffic which 
will be hazardous or conflict with the existing and anticipated traffic in the 
neighborhood; 

(5) The proposed use incorporates roadway adjustments, traffic control 
devices or mechanisms, and access restrictions to control traffic flow or 
divert traffic as may be needed to reduce or eliminate development 
generated traffic on neighborhood streets; 

(6) The proposed use incorporates features to minimize adverse effects, 
including visual impacts, of the proposed conditional use on adjacent 
properties; and 

(7) The proposed use meets the standards for the zoning district, or to the 
extent variations from such standards have been requested, that such 
variations are necessary to render the use compatible with adjoining 
development and the neighborhood. 

CONDITIONS:  The City Council may require such modifications in the proposed use and 
attach such conditions to the CUP as the City Council deems necessary to mitigate 
adverse effects of the proposed use and to carry out the spirit and intent of this section.   

The proposed facility will have automotive repair bays as an integral part of the use.  Being 
that Broadway is within the Corridor Overlay District, staff feels that a condition should be 
in place that prevents the repair bays from facing or opening up onto Broadway St.  

Should City Council identify additional impacts which it feels should be mitigated, additional 
conditions and modifications may be placed on the approval of the CUP. 
 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  Staff recommends approval of the CUP No. 2013-02 to 
allow the operation of a Minor Auto Repair Facility in the General Business (GB) district as 
proposed by the applicant and owner for the following reasons and with the following 
condition: 

 
1. The proposed request should not have any significant negative impact on the 

surrounding properties and developments. 
 

2. The proposed request would be in conformance with the Unified Development Code 
with the approval of a CUP. 
 

3. The proposed request is in conformance with the criteria of approval of a CUP listed 
in the Unified Development Code. 
 

4. The proposed request would result in redevelopment of a currently non-occupied 
residential home in a commercial zoning district. 



 
 

JPH 04-15-13 
CUP 2013-02 

Page 5 
 

 

5. The proposed request would enhance the property from its current state, particularly 
with the recommended condition of approval, listed below. 
 

Condition: 
 

1. Repair bays shall not be permitted to open up to or face onto Broadway St.  
 

 

SUPPORTING DOCUMENTS:  
 Vicinity and Zoning  Map 
 Property Ownership Map 
 Property Owner Notification List 
 Future Land Use Plan 
 Aerial Photograph 
 Zone Change Application and applicant packet 

 



Vicinity and Zoning Map
CUP 2013-02

7929 Broadway St.

GB

MF

GC

SR-12

NS

R-1

PUD

M-1

BROADWAY ST

ZAPALAC RD

WEST GATE ST

OLD CHOCOLATE BAYOU RD

TRANQUILITY LAKES BLVD

NIPPER LN

BROWNSTONE PLACE

¯0 110 22055 Feet



Brazoria

BROADWAY ST

WEST GATE ST

BROWNSTONE PLACE ¯ 0 17085 Feet

Abutter Map
CUP 2013-02

7929 Broadway St.



CUP 2013-02
7929 Broadway Minor Auto Repair in GB

Owner Address City State Zip
GARNER FARRELL B & DONNA S PO BOX 84205 PEARLAND TX 77584-0017

TAPUZ LTD PO BOX 22957 HOUSTON TX 77227-2957

HRBACEK EMIL J 8013 BROADWAY ST PEARLAND TX 77581-7760

O DAY & O DAY - ASTRO PLUMBING PO BOX 149 PEARLAND TX 77588-0149

BURNS ROBERT PO BOX 580591 HOUSTON TX 77258-0591

CORTE LOUIS A PO BOX 854 PEARLAND TX 77588-0854

RODRIGUEZ ANA E & ESTEBAN V PO BOX 84110 PEARLAND TX 77584-0018

LEBON CHARLES 3681 LYON SPRINGS RD SEVIERVILLE TN 37862-8257

MORENO EMMA E 7937 BROADWAY ST PEARLAND TX 77581-7784

HUGHES-WEST INVESTMENTS LTD 7918 BROADWAY ST, STE 106 PEARLAND TX 77581-7930



FLUP Map
CUP 2013-02

7929 Broadway St. 

Retail, Offices and Services

Business Commercial

Low Density Residential

High Density Residential

Public / Semi-Public

Cullen Mixed Use District

BROADWAY ST

OAK RDOLD CHOCOLATE BAYOU RD

ZAPALAC RD

DAWN RIVER LN

MISTY LAKE LN

WATERLILLY LN

STONE ARBOR LN

QUIET TRACE LN

LAKESIDE MANOR LN

OAK RD

¯0 175 35087.5 Feet



Aerial Map
CUP 2013-02

7929 Broadway St.

BROADWAY ST

WEST GATE ST

¯0 40 8020 Feet



















P&Z AGENDA  
ITEM  

 
 

 
 
 

B 
 
 

 



 
 

JPH 04-15-2013 
CUP 2013-03 

Page 1 
 

      
      

JOINT PUBLIC HEARING AGENDA ITEM 
MEETING OF APRIL 15, 2013 

 

 
 

Conditional Use Permit No. CUP 2013-03 
 

A request of Lyle Henkel, Terra Associates, applicant for HEB Grocery Co, LP – 
Todd Piland, owner, for approval of a Conditional Use Permit to allow for Auto Wash 
– Self Service in the General Business (GB) zone, on property located at the 
northwest corner of Broadway and Pearland Pkwy., more specifically described 
property: 

 

Legal Description: Being a tract containing 22.7711 acres of land situated in the 
Thomas J, Green Survey, abstract Number 198, Brazoria County, Texas, and being 
out of and a portion of the called 118.755 acre tract as described in the deed to 
Marion E. Sattegest, et al, recorded in Volume 1421, Page 25, of the Brazoria 
County Deed Records, Brazoria County, Texas. 

General Location: 6301 Broadway Street 
 

APPROVAL PROCESS:  After this Joint Public Hearing, the requested zone 
change application will be considered as follows: 

 
Planning and Zoning Commission:        April 15, 2013* 
City Council for First Reading:                May 13, 2013* 
City Council for Second Reading:          May 13, 2013* 
 
 (*dates subject to change if item is tabled) 

 
 
 
SUMMARY:  The applicant is requesting a Conditional Use Permit to build an Auto 
Wash (Self-Service) on the subject parcel. The property is currently zoned General 
Business (GB), which permits the proposed use with the approval of a CUP.   
 
Auto Wash (Self-Service) is defined as follows in the Unified Development Code (UDC): 
 
Washing, waxing or cleaning of automobiles or light duty trucks where the owner of the 
vehicle causes the vehicle to become washed.  One type of unattended car wash 
facility utilizes automated self-service (drive-through/rollover) wash bays and apparatus 
in which the vehicle owner inserts money or tokens into a machine, drives the vehicle 
into the car wash bay, and waits in the vehicle while it is being washed.  The other type 



 
 

JPH 04-15-2013 
CUP 2013-03 

Page 2 
 

of unattended facility is comprised of a wand-type self-service(open) wash bays in 
which the vehicle owner drives the vehicle into the wash bay, gets out of the vehicle, 
and hand washes the vehicle with a wand-type apparatus by depositing coins or tokens 
into a machine.    
  
The access to the facility is proposed from Pearland Pkwy. Preliminary Site plan 
drawings show the tunnel openings face Broadway while the more articulated primary 
façade faces Pearland Pkwy.   
 
SURROUNDING ZONING AND LAND USES: 
 
 Zoning  Land Use 

North Planned Development 
(PD) 

 Vacant 

South General Business (GB)  Commercial 

East General Commercial (GC)   
 

 Commercial 
 

West General Business (GB)  Commercial 
 
 
CONFORMANCE TO THE UNIFIED DEVELOPMENT CODE (UDC):  The subject property 
is currently zoned General Business (GB). The overall parcel is 22.82 acres and meets the 
minimum size for the GB zone. The property will be required to meet all current 
requirements of the Unified Development Code for the proposed use. 
 
PLATTING STATUS:  The property has been platted as Pearland Commons.    
 
CONFORMANCE TO THE COMPREHENSIVE PLAN:  The Comprehensive Plan 
recommends Retail, Offices, and Services for the subject property and the surrounding 
properties.  The Comprehensive Plan further indicates that the appropriate zoning districts 
are General Business (GB), and Office Professional (OP). The existing zoning and the 
proposed use with an approved CUP are in compliance with the Comprehensive Plan.  
 
CONFORMANCE TO THE THOROUGHFARE PLAN:  The subject property has frontage 
on Broadway and Pearland Pkwy., both major thoroughfares with sufficient width for right-
of-way of 120 feet. There are not any dedications required for Broadway or Pearland Pkwy. 
The proposed Conditional Use Permit is in conformance with the Thoroughfare Plan. 
 
AVAILABILITY OF UTILITIES:  The subject parcel is served by public water and sewer.  
 
IMPACT ON EXISTING AND FUTURE DEVELOPMENT:  The applicant is requesting 
approval of a Conditional Use Permit that would allow auto Wash to be built as part of 
an overall shopping development. It is not anticipated at this time that the proposed use 



 
 

JPH 04-15-2013 
CUP 2013-03 

Page 3 
 

will have any major impacts on the surrounding development.  The auto wash will be 
located as part of a fuel station which is already a permitted use in the GB zone.   
 
Staff recommends a condition of approval that would not permit the auto wash bay to face 
Pearland Pkwy.  As the proposed location is much closer to Pearland Parkway than 
Broadway, turning the bay opening away from Pearland Parkway will minimize the visual 
effect that the proposed use may have on Pearland Parkway.  
 
ADDITONAL COMMENTS:  This request has been reviewed by the City’s Development 
Review Committee (DRC) and there are no additional or outstanding comments from other 
departments. 
 
SITE PLAN CONSIDERATIONS:  A site plan was submitted with the application.  The plan 
shows the auto wash being located near the Pearland Parkway frontage with the bays 
facing toward Broadway.  
 
PUBLIC NOTIFICATION:  Public notice/comment forms were mailed to property owners 
within 200 feet of the subject property under consideration.  A legal notice of public hearing 
was published in the local newspaper, and a sign advertising the proposed Conditional Use 
Permit was placed on the subject property.     
 
OPPOSITION TO OR SUPPORT OF PROPOSED REQUEST:  Staff has not received any 
comments either in opposition to or in support of the proposed Conditional Use Permit 
request at this time.   
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  Staff recommends approval of the Conditional Use Permit 
No. CUP 2013-03 as proposed by the applicant for the following reasons and the following 
condition: 
 

1. The proposed Conditional Use Permit should not have any significant negative 
impact on the surrounding properties and developments. 
 

2. The proposed Conditional Use Permit is in conformance with the current land use 
plan. 
 

3. This proposed Conditional Use Permit is compatible with the neighboring properties 
zoning classification 

 
CONDITIONS:   
 

1. Auto wash bays may not open up to or face onto Pearland Parkway.  
 

 

 

 
 



 
 

JPH 04-15-2013 
CUP 2013-03 

Page 4 
 

SUPPORTING DOCUMENTS:  
 CUP  Application 
 Vicinity  Map 
 Property Ownership Map 
 Property Owner Notification List 
 Zoning Map 
 Future Land Use Plan 
 Aerial Photograph 
 Other Maps and Related Documents 

 



Zoning and Vicinity Map
CUP 2013-03
Pearland Pkwy
@ Broadway

R-2

GB

PUD

GC

OP

MF

R-4
R-1

R-3

BROADWAY ST

PEARLA
ND PKWY

WESTM
INISTER

AL
EX

AN
DE

R L
N

STRATFORD
CRUISE LN

LEE CIR

LONDON CT
WATERLOO

YMCA DR

ALEXANDER PARC DR

SAXTON CT

¯0 280 560140 Feet

This product is for information purposes and
may not have been prepared for or be suitable
for legal, engineering, or surveying purposes.
It does not represent an on-the-ground survey
and represents only the approximate relative
location of property boundaries.



Abutter Map
CUP 2013-03
Pearland Pkwy
@ Broadway

BROADWAY ST

PEARLA
ND PKWY

CRUISE LN

WE
ST

MI
NIS

TE
R

YMCA DR

WI
ND

SW
EP

T

WINDWOOD

¯0 160 32080 Feet

This product is for information purposes and
may not have been prepared for or be suitable
for legal, engineering, or surveying purposes.
It does not represent an on-the-ground survey
and represents only the approximate relative
location of property boundaries.



CUP 2013-03
Carwash in a GB Zone

Name Address Address 2 City State Zip

WHISPERING APARTMENTS LLC % CLAUDIA L CROCKER 2301 S CAPITAL OF TEXAS HWY STE J102 AUSTIN TX 78746-7706

KELLEY R W FAMILY LTD PARTNERSHIP 2933 BROADWAY ST PEARLAND TX 77581-4508

FIRST PRESBYTERIAN CHURCH 2930 BROADWAY ST PEARLAND TX 77581-4507

HALLE PROPERTIES LLC 20255 N SCOTTSDALE RD SCOTTSDALE AZ 85255-6456

JPMORGAN CHASE BANK NA ASSOC 270 PARK AVE NEW YORK NY 10017-2014

ELLIS CARL H & JOYCE A REFERENCE ONLY SEE REPLAT WHISPERNG WNDS SEC 8277-2004-000 0

CVS PEARLAND PARKWAY LP CVS CORP #5877-02 OCCUPANCY EXP DEPT 1 CVS DR WOONSOCKET RI 02895-6146

SOUTH TRUST BANK PO BOX 2609 CARLSBAD CA 92018

ARC BFPRLTX001 % AMERICAN REALTY CAPITAL II 106 YORK RD JENKINTOWN PA 19046

CVS PEARLAND PARKWAY LP CVS CORP #5877-02 OCCUPANCY EXP DEPT 1 CVS DR WOONSOCKET RI 02895-6146



FLUP Map
CUP 2013-03
Pearland Pkwy
@ Broadway

Offices

Retail, Offices and Services

Medium Density Residential

D-10,000sf Lots (Suburban Res)

Public / Semi-Public

High Density Residential

Parks

Low Density Residential

BROADWAY ST

PEARLA
ND PKWY

WESTM
INISTER

AL
EX

AN
DE

R L
N

STRATFORD

LEE CIR
WATERLOO
YMCA DR

SAXTON CT

¯0 280 560140 Feet

This product is for information purposes and
may not have been prepared for or be suitable
for legal, engineering, or surveying purposes.
It does not represent an on-the-ground survey
and represents only the approximate relative
location of property boundaries.



Aerial Map
CUP 2013-03
Pearland Pkwy
@ Broadway

BROADWAY ST

PEARLA
ND PKWY

WESTM
INISTER

AL
EX

AN
DE

R L
N

STRATFORD
CRUISE LN

LEE CIR

LONDON CT
WATERLOO

YMCA DR

ALEXANDER PARC DR

SAXTON CT

¯0 280 560140 Feet

This product is for information purposes and
may not have been prepared for or be suitable
for legal, engineering, or surveying purposes.
It does not represent an on-the-ground survey
and represents only the approximate relative
location of property boundaries.



iclowes
Typewritten Text
174281

iclowes
Typewritten Text







iclowes
Rectangle









P&Z AGENDA  
ITEM  

 
 

 
 
 

C 
 
 

 



 
 

JPH 04-15-13 
Zone Change 2013-06Z 

Page 1 
 

       

JOINT PUBLIC HEARING AGENDA ITEM 
MEETING OF APRIL 15, 2013 

 

 
Zone Change No. 2013-06Z 
 

A request of Richard Gonzalez applicant and owner, for approval of a zone change 
from the Single Family (R-2) zone to the Neighborhood Services (NS) zone, to wit: 

 

Legal Description: Being a .460 acre tract of land out of the H.T. & B. R.R 
Company Survey, section 11, abstract 239, City of Pearland, Brazoria County, 
Texas.  
 

General Location: 4608 Walnut, Pearland, TX 
 
 
APPROVAL PROCESS:  After this Joint Public Hearing, the requested zone  
change application will be considered as follows: 

 
Planning and Zoning Commission:      April 15, 2013* 
City Council for First Reading:               May 13, 2013* 
City Council for Second Reading:         May 13, 2013* 
 (*dates subject to change) 

 
 
SUMMARY:  Richard Gonzalez applicant and owner, is requesting approval of a zone 
change from the Single Family (R-2) zone to the Neighborhood Services (NS) zone for 
the above referenced location.  If approved, this zone change will allow the applicant to 
convert the existing single family home on site into a proposed coffee shop and office 
space.   
 
SURROUNDING ZONING AND LAND USES: 
 
 
 
 

Zoning  Land Use 

North Single Family (R-2)  Single Family Home 
South Single Family (R-2)  Single Family Home 
East Single Family (R-2)  Single Family Home 
West Office Professional (OP)  Law Office 
 
 
 



 
 

JPH 04-15-13 
Zone Change 2013-06Z 

Page 2 
 

CONFORMANCE WITH THE UNIFIED DEVELOPMENT CODE (UDC):  As previously 
mentioned, the property is currently zoned Single Family (R-2). As the property is currently 
being requested to be rezoned to Neighborhood Services (NS), a breakdown between 
those requirements is provided below: 
 
   R2   NS   Existing Site 
Lot Size:   7,000 sq ft  12,500 sq ft   20,000 sq ft  
Lot Width:   70’   100’   100 
Lot Depth:   90’   100’   200’ 
Front Setback: 25’   25’   ~25’  
Rear Setback: 20’   10’   ~25’ 
Side Setback : 7.5’   10’   ~10’ 
 
In addition to these requirements, the site will be required to conform to the landscaping, 
parking, and façade standards of the Unified Development Code. Parking will need to be 
added to comply with the commercial guidelines for the proposed use.  Landscaping, 
including shrubs to screen the additional parking will be required.  The current façade 
would need to be upgraded to masonry in order to comply with the commercial standards.  
 
PLATTING STATUS: The property is not currently platted.  Platting would be required prior 
to the release of any future building permits.  
 
CONFORMANCE WITH THE COMPREHENSIVE PLAN:  The current Comprehensive 
Plan (latest update in 2009) indicates Medium Density Residential for the subject property. 
 The Comprehensive Plan further indicates that NS would not be an appropriate zoning 
district for Medium Density Residential. The property’s current zoning of Single Family (R2) 
is considered an appropriate zoning district for the Medium Density Residential designation 
in the Comprehensive Plan.   
 
Though this zone change would not be in conformance with the Future Land Use Plan, 
staff feels that a potential amendment to the land use plan for this area may be 
appropriate.  The area overall is in transition to a more mixed use neighborhood and is 
located just outside the Old Townsite District.  Staff feels that extending the boundaries of 
the Old Townsite westward along Walnut would benefit the neighborhood by allowing more 
mixed use developments and allow for further future investment in the neighborhood.    
 

CONFORMANCE WITH THE THOROUGHFARE PLAN:  The subject property has 
frontage on Walnut St, a major collector, with a minimum of 80’ right-of-way.  
 
AVAILABILITY OF UTILITIES:  The subject parcel does have access to public water and 
public sewer. 
 
IMPACT ON EXISTING AND FUTURE DEVELOPMENT:  The proposed zone change, 
if approved, is not anticipated to have any negative impacts on existing or future 
developments in the immediate area.  The proposed site is located next door to an 
existing office space and down the street from property currently zoned General 



 
 

JPH 04-15-13 
Zone Change 2013-06Z 

Page 3 
 

Business (GB).  The area appears to be in a mode of transition from residential to 
mixed use.  This proposed zone change could act as a good transition or buffer from 
the remaining residential and the existing commercial.  
 
 
 
ADDITONAL COMMENTS: This request has been reviewed by the City’s Development 
Review Committee and there are no additional comments from other departments at the 
time of this report. 
 
SITE PLAN CONSIDERATIONS:  A site plan is not required for a zone change, however 
the property is currently developed.   
 
PUBLIC NOTIFICATION:  Public notice/comment forms were mailed to property owners 
within 200 feet of the subject property under consideration.  A legal notice of public hearing 
was published in the local newspaper, and a notification sign was placed on the subject 
property.     
 
OPPOSITION TO OR SUPPORT OF PROPOSED REQUEST:  Staff has not received any 
comments either in opposition to or in support of the proposed zone change request.   
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  Staff recommends approval of the Zone Change 2013-06Z 
as proposed by the applicant for the following reasons: 
 

1. Approval of the zone change will result in conformance with the surrounding zoning 
and act as a transition zone between commercial and residential uses. 
 

2. The proposed zone change should not have any significant negative impact on the 
surrounding properties and developments. 

 

 

SUPPORTING DOCUMENTS:  
 Vicinity and Zoning  Map 
 Property Ownership Map 
 Property Owner Notification List 
 Future Land Use Plan 
 Aerial Photograph 
 Zone Change Application and Applicant Documents  
 Related Documents 

 
 



Zoning and Vicinity Map
Zone Change 2013-06Z
4608 Walnut St.

R-2

GB

TH

R-4

OP

W WALNUT ST

SILSBEE DR

JOHNSTON

¯010205 Feet

This product is for information purposes and
may not have been prepared for or be suitable
for legal, engineering, or surveying purposes.
It does not represent an on-the-ground survey
and represents only the approximate relative
location of property boundaries.



Abutter Map
Zone Change 2013-06Z
4608 Walnut St.

W WALNUT ST

SILSBEE DR

JOHNSTON

¯010205 Feet

This product is for information purposes and
may not have been prepared for or be suitable
for legal, engineering, or surveying purposes.
It does not represent an on-the-ground survey
and represents only the approximate relative
location of property boundaries.



Zone Change 2013-06Z
4608 Walnut St. - R-2 to NS

Name Address City State Zip

GONGORA ROBERTO 1113 SHADOWBEND ST PEARLAND TX 77581-6794

HARLAND JULIA F 2701 HOLLY SPRINGS DR PEARLAND TX 77584-1315

ELLIOTT J LON & SUZANNE PO BOX 1302 PEARLAND TX 77588-1302

GUERRERO RACHEL 4604 W WALNUT ST PEARLAND TX 77581-3919

ADVANTAGE HOUSE BUYERS INC 15729 NORTH FWY I-45 HOUSTON TX 77090-5825

4608 W WALNUT LLC 1607 N VENICE DR PEARLAND TX 77581-7506

BAZAN ROGER 4801 SILSBEE DR PEARLAND TX 77584-1313

THOMPSON BRANDON L & JUDY EASON 4803 SILSBEE DR PEARLAND TX 77584-1313

LEE VIRGINIA L 4805 SILSBEE DR PEARLAND TX 77584-1313

GARCIA DAVID O 4807 SILSBEE PEARLAND TX 77581

SUSTALA JIM & JANICE 4809 SILSBEE DR PEARLAND TX 77584-1313

LOPEZ SANTIAGO T 4811 SILSBEE DR PEARLAND TX 77584-1313

PETERS JAMES C 2702 HOLLY SPRINGS DR PEARLAND TX 77584-1311

DRIVER ADRIA GAY 2701 HOT SPRINGS DR PEARLAND TX 77584

MILLS GREGORY 2702 HOT SPRINGS DR PEARLAND TX 77584-1314

PRICE JOHN C 4619 W WALNUT ST PEARLAND TX 77581-3918

GONZALEZ MICHAEL W 4702 W WALNUT AVE PEARLAND TX 77581

HERNANDEZ ALFRED 4901 SILSBEE DR PEARLAND TX 77584

SOTO ANDRES & GABRIELA 4903 SILSBEE DR PEARLAND TX 77584-1327



FLUP Map
Zone Change 2013-06Z
4608 Walnut St.

Medium Density Residential

Retail, Offices and Services
Low Density Residential

W WALNUT ST

SILSBEE DR

JOHNSTON

¯010205 Feet

This product is for information purposes and
may not have been prepared for or be suitable
for legal, engineering, or surveying purposes.
It does not represent an on-the-ground survey
and represents only the approximate relative
location of property boundaries.



Aerial Map
Zone Change 2013-06Z
4608 Walnut St.

W WALNUT ST

SILSBEE DR

JOHNSTON

¯010205 Feet

This product is for information purposes and
may not have been prepared for or be suitable
for legal, engineering, or surveying purposes.
It does not represent an on-the-ground survey
and represents only the approximate relative
location of property boundaries.











P&Z AGENDA  
ITEM  

 
 

 
 
 

D 
 
 

 



 
 

JPH 04-15-13 
Zone Change 2013-07Z 

Page 1 
 

       

JOINT PUBLIC HEARING AGENDA ITEM 
MEETING OF APRIL 15, 2013 

 

 
Zone Change No. 2013-07Z 
 

A request of Christy Smidt (Kerry G. Gilbert & Assoc.), applicant and Beeman E. 
Strong (for the Settegast Family), owner, for approval of a zone change from the 
Planned Development (PD) zone to the Planned Development (PD) zone for 
31.3165 acres, to wit: 

 

Legal Description: Being a 30.7935 acre (1,341,365 square foot) tract of land  
situated in the Thomas J. Green Survey, Abstract Number 198 in Brazoria County, 
Texas, and being out of and a part of the called 118.775 acre tract of land described 
in deed to Marion E. Settegast, et al as recorded in Volume 1421, Page 25 of the 
Brazoria County Deed Records, said 31.3165 acre tract of land. 

 

General Location:  Approximately 700’ North of Broadway on Pearland Pkwy 
 
 
APPROVAL PROCESS:  After this Joint Public Hearing, the requested zone  
change application will be considered as follows: 

 
Planning and Zoning Commission:  April 15, 2013* 
City Council for First Reading:          May 13, 2013* 
City Council for Second Reading:    May 27, 2013* 
 (*dates subject to change) 

 
 
CURRENT CASE:  Christy Smidt, applicant, has applied for a zone change on behalf of 
Mr. Beeman Strong, representing the Settegast Family, owner, of 30.7935 acres of land 
located approximately 700’ north of the northwest intersection of Broadway (FM 518) 
and Pearland Pkwy.  The property in question is currently zoned Planned Development 
(PD) and contains land which is part of a Planned Development known as Pearland 
Commons which was approved by City Council in 2008.  The applicant is requesting 
that the property be rezoned to a new and separate Planned Development (PD).   
 
The total acreage of the previously approved Pearland Commons Planned 
Development is approximately 53 acres.  Approximately 22 of these acres were 
rezoned in 2011 to General Business for a proposed commercial development.   
 
The applicant is proposing a shopping center on the remaining 31 acre site which is 
intended to compliment the proposed development to the south.  The development 



 
 

JPH 04-15-13 
Zone Change 2013-07Z 

Page 2 
 

would abut the residential subdivision to the west and have parking in front along 
Pearland Parkway.    
 
SITE HISTORY:  Prior to the adoption of the Pearland Commons PD in March 2008, 
the entire site (all 53 acres) had three zoning designations: General Business (GB), and 
two residential zones, R-3 and R-2.  The acreage for the GB zoned property, located at 
the northwest intersection of Broadway and Pearland Pkwy was approximately 22 
acres. This is the site that was rezoned back to GB in 2011.  The remaining acreage 
remained as PD and is now requesting a new PD zone.  
 
The GB zone was approved at the hard corner for a specific development and had 
assurances in place from the developer that the project would be of a higher quality 
then would normally be required.  This adjoining 31 acre site is considered to be of 
similar importance to the city as was the 22 acre site at the hard corner.   
 
The applicant originally requested a straight General Business (GB) zone change in 
February of 2013. This application was withdrawn by the applicant after the City Council 
and Planning and Zoning Commission voiced their concerns with allowing a straight GB 
zone change with no assurances as to the kind of development that would be 
constructed.  With this in mind, staff has advised the applicant that a Planned 
Development may be a better option moving forward.  The Unified Development Code 
states: 
 
 The purpose and intent of the PD district is to facilitate the design and 
implementation of retail development that is designed to aesthetically and harmoniously 
complement the adjacent residential and commercial areas. 
 
SURROUNDING ZONING AND LAND USES: 
 
 Zoning        Land Use 

North Single-Family Residential-2 
(R-2)  
 

       Vacant 

South General Business (GB)        Commercial 
 
East 

 
Planned Development (PD) 
and General Commercial 
(GC) 
 

        
      Commercial, Single Family        
      Residential 
 

West Single-Family Residential-2 
(R-2) and Multi-Family (MF) 
 

      Single Family Subdivision, Multi- 
     Family Units 

    
 
 



 
 

JPH 04-15-13 
Zone Change 2013-07Z 

Page 3 
 

 
 
CONFORMANCE WITH THE UNIFIED DEVELOPMENT CODE (UDC):  The subject 
property is currently zoned as Planned Development (PD). 
 
PLATTING STATUS:  The property has not been platted.  Platting will be required prior to 
development of the land. 
 
CONFORMANCE WITH THE COMPREHENSIVE PLAN:  The current adopted 
Comprehensive Plan’s Future Land Use Map indicates this area should be retail, 
offices, and service. Therefore, the designation of General Business (GB) being 
requested would be consistent with the intent of the Comprehensive Plan.   
 
CONFORMANCE WITH THE THOROUGHFARE PLAN:  The subject property has 
frontage on Pearland Pkwy, a major thoroughfares with sufficient width for right-of-way of 
120 feet.   
 
AVAILABILITY OF UTILITIES:  Public water and sewer are available for this site. 
 
IMPACT ON EXISTING AND FUTURE DEVELOPMENT:  The proposed zone change, 
if approved, would allow all of the “Permitted By-Right” land uses in the City’s Land Use 
Matrix for the General Business (GB) zoning district in the Unified Development Code 
excluding those listed in the PD as excluded uses.  Overall, the proposed development 
would enhance the already approved development to the south and would include a 
number of amenities that would not be required in the Unified Development Code for a 
normal development of this kind.   
 
At the original Joint Public Hearing for this development, City Council and the Planning 
and Zoning Commission had a number of concerns with allowing a straight GB zone 
change.  The applicant appears to have addressed most of these concerns through the 
submitted PD document.  The proposed PD would create a superior development by 
providing the following: 
 

 Varied location of buildings and outparcels to prevent a generic strip center feel 
 Linear building along the back of the development will include variable depths 

and off sets preventing a singular monotonous face. 
 Public  gathering and play areas are proposed around restaurant pad sites with 

pedestrian connectivity to other areas of the development and neighboring 
properties.  

 Enhanced entry feature that will create a sense of place, with landscaped 
median and walkway leading from Pearland Parkway and continuing for the full 
depth of the development. 

 Meandering walkways throughout the development and along Pearland Parkway 
will ensure pedestrian access to all areas of the development. 

 Walkway along rear building will be enhanced with plantings and variations in 



 
 

JPH 04-15-13 
Zone Change 2013-07Z 

Page 4 
 

materials and design to ensure a more aesthetically appealing environment for 
the pedestrian.  

 Concrete pavement will be required along with stained concrete and brick pavers 
to add variation to the design.  No asphalt will be permitted.   

 Light poles to service the pad sites along Pearland Parkway will be limited in 
height to 20’ and lights along the rear of the development will be mounted on the 
building.   

 All structures will be required to include two different building materials for the 
façade which will prevent monotonous design schemes.  Stone will be required 
for a percentage of each building façade and metal and EIFS will only be 
permitted as trim.  

 A comprehensive sign package has been requested that will enhance the overall 
development. 

 
Though staff ultimately feels this development would be a compliment to the 
surrounding areas, there are still a number of outstanding concerns with the current PD 
document.  These comments have been submitted to the applicant and have been 
provided to you as part of this packet.  
 
ADDITONAL COMMENTS: This request has been reviewed by the City’s Development 
Review Committee and there are no additional comments from other departments at the 
time of this report. 
 
SITE PLAN CONSIDERATIONS:  A site plan has been provided as part of the application 
submittal. 
 
PUBLIC NOTIFICATION:  Public notice/comment forms were mailed to property owners 
within 200 feet of the subject property under consideration.  A legal notice of public hearing 
was published in the local newspaper, and a notification sign was placed on the subject 
property.     
 
AGENTS AUTHORIZATION:  The Planning Department has on file documentation from 
the Settegast family   authorizing Beeman Strong to process this zone change application. 
 
 
OPPOSITION TO OR SUPPORT OF PROPOSED REQUEST:  Staff has not received any 
comments either in opposition to or in support of the proposed zone change request.  
 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION: Staff recommends approval of the Zone Change 2013-07Z 
as proposed by the applicant for the following reasons and with the following condition: 
 

1. Approval of the PD will allow for a higher quality development with a larger amount 
of amenities that would not normally be required for a development in a traditional 
zone.  



 
 

JPH 04-15-13 
Zone Change 2013-07Z 

Page 5 
 

 
2. Approval of the PD will result in conformance with the surrounding zoning as well as 

current and future land uses. 
 

3. The proposed PD should not have any significant negative impact on the 
surrounding properties and developments. 
 

4. The proposed PD will bring the property into compliance with the approved Future 
Land Use Plan. 

 

CONDITION: 
 

1. All outstanding staff comments to be fully addressed and incorporated into the PD 
document prior to final approval.  

 
SUPPORTING DOCUMENTS:  

 Vicinity and Zoning  Map 
 Property Ownership Map 
 Property Owner Notification List 
 Future Land Use Plan 
 Aerial Photograph 
 Zone Change Application and Applicant Documents 
 Initial Staff Comments and other Related Documents 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Vicinity and Zoning Map
Zone Change 2013-07Z
Pearland Pkwy
North of Broadway

R-2

GB

PUD

GC

OP

MF

R-3

R-1 CLUSTER

BROADWAY ST

PEARLA
ND PKWYWE

ST
MI

NIS
TE

R

AL
EX

AN
DE

R L
N

LONDON CT

CRUISE LN
HIDDEN CREEK DR

LEE CIR

WATERLOO

YMCA DR

SM
ITH

 LN

STRATFORD
PARK VILLA DR

QUEEN VICTORIA ST

TOWER BRIDGE CT

¯0 290 580145 Feet

This product is for information purposes and
may not have been prepared for or be suitable
for legal, engineering, or surveying purposes.
It does not represent an on-the-ground survey
and represents only the approximate relative
location of property boundaries.





Zone Change 2013-07Z
31 Acres on Pearland Parkway - PD to PD

Name Street Address Unit City State Zip

DRIS MOHAMED & WAFA BENACHOUR 2926 WATERLOO RD PEARLAND TX 77581

DAWSON STEVE & DEBORA 2924 WATERLOO RD PEARLAND TX 77581-4542

WHITE SONYA K 2922 WATERLOO RD PEARLAND TX 77581

MOELLER CHANNING THEODORE & MELISSA 

ANN COOK 222 SETTLERS HAVEN RD CLEVELAND NC 27013

WHISPERING APARTMENTS LLC % CLAUDIA L CROCKER 2301 S CAPITAL OF TEXAS HWY STE J102 AUSTIN TX 78746-7706

ROBERTS DEANN M 2932 WATERLOO RD PEARLAND TX 77581-4538

CONFIDENTIAL 2930 WATERLOO RD PEARLAND TX 77581-4538

JOHNSON DEBORAH V 2928 WATERLOO RD PEARLAND TX 77581-4542

KING KIMBERLY C 2901 LONDON CT PEARLAND TX 77581-4533

HUTH MICHAEL & KRISTEN CASTILLO 2904 LONDON CT PEARLAND TX 77581

CONFIDENTIAL 2902 LONDON CT PEARLAND TX 77581-4532

LEAL DAVID 2940 WATERLOO RD PEARLAND TX 77581-4538

MILLS JASON M 2938 WATERLOO RD PEARLAND TX 77581-4538

LEE-JENNINGS KATHLEEN BERNADETTE 2934 WATERLOO RD PEARLAND TX 77581-4538

WILLIAMS MATTHEW K 2836 WATERLOO RD PEARLAND TX 77581



P&Z AGENDA  
ITEM  

 
 

 
 
 

E 
 
 

 



City of Pearland 

3519 Liberty Drive, Pearland, Texas  77581 
Ph: (281) 652-1768  |  Fax: (281) 652-1702   |   www.cityofpearland.com 

   

 
 

 

 

    City of Pearland 
   

 

P&Z AGENDA REQUEST  
 
 

TO:    Planning & Zoning Commission 
 
REQUESTOR:   Ian Clowes 
 
DATE:    04/08/2013 
 
AGENDA ITEM SUBJECT: Partial Replat of Lot 2, Block 1 of Kirby Commons 

 
 

 Old Business         New Business     Discussion Item    Workshop 
 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Regular P&Z meetings are held on the first and third Monday of every month. This form must be received 6 
calendar days prior to the meeting in order to be included on the agenda. 

Summary:  A request by Chris L. Hendrick, applicant, on behalf of 518 @ Kirby, 
LLC, owner for approval of a Partial Replat of Lot 2, Block 1 of Kirby Commons. 
The site is located near the northwest corner of Kirby and Broadway. 

 

 

 

 

 
Staff Recommendation:  Approval 

Reviewed by: 
 
__________________ 
 
Date Reviewed: 
 
__________________ 
 



 
 

P&Z 4/15/2013 
Partial Replat of Lot 2, Block 1 of Kirby Commons 

Page 1 
 

PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION   
MEETING OF APRIL 15, 2013 
 

 
REPLAT OF LOT 2, BLOCK 1 OF KIRBY COMMONS 
 

A request by Chris L. Hendrick, applicant, on behalf of 518 @ Kirby, LLC, owner 
for approval of a Partial Replat of Lot 2, Block 1 of Kirby Crossing. The site is 
located near the northwest corner of Kirby and Broadway on the following 
described property, to wit 
 
Legal Description:  A Subdivision of 1.333 acres in the T.C. & B.R.R. CO. 
Survey, section 3, Abstract No. 678, in the City of Pearland, Brazoria County, 
Texas. 

 
General Location: Located at the NW corner of Kirby Dr. and Broadway St. 

  
 
SUMMARY:  The applicant is requesting approval of a Replat for a roughly 1.333 acre 
tract out of lot 2A of the previously approved Kirby Commons Minor plat.  The applicant 
has indicated that the property has been sold and a replat is necessary in order to 
develop the property as desired.  
 
LAND USE AND URBAN DEVELOPMENT ORDINANCE: The property is currently 
zoned Planned Development – Commercial (PD-C) and is part of the Shadow Creek 
Planned Development.  The proposed replat meets the requirements of the Land Use 
and Urban Development Ordinance as well as the requirements of the PD. 
 
SURROUNDING ZONING AND LAND USES:  
 

  Zoning Land Use 
North Single Family  - PD Shadow Creek - SF  
South Planned Development Pearland Town Center 
East Planned Development - C Shadow Creek Commercial 
West Single Family  - PD Shadow Creek - SF 

 
COMFORMANCE TO THE COMPREHENSIVE PLAN: The City of Pearland Land Use 
Plan designates the property for Retail, Offices, and Services. The allowed uses within 
the planned development are in conformance with the comprehensive plan.  
 
PLATTING STATUS: The original minor plat of Kirby Commons was approved in June 
of 2008 by the City.  The first partial replat was approved by the Planning and Zoning 

 



 
 

P&Z 4/15/2013 
Partial Replat of Lot 2, Block 1 of Kirby Commons 

Page 2 
 

Commission in January of 2009.  
 
CONFORMANCE TO THE THOROUGHFARE PLAN:  The subject property has 
frontage on Broadway, a major thoroughfare with right-of-way of 120’. The subject 
parcel is in conformance with the approved thoroughfare plan.  
 
ADDITONAL COMMENTS:  This request has been reviewed by the City’s Development 
Review Committee and there were no additional comments.  
 
TRAFFIC AND TRANSPORTATION:  A Traffic Impact Analysis was submitted to the 
City for the overall development of Kirby Commons and has been approved. 
 
UTILIITES AND INFRASTRUCTURE:  Water and sewer service are available to for this 
site.   
 
STORMWATER MANAGEMENT:  Detention will be provided in accordance to city 
requirements.    
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  Staff recommends approval of the Partial Replat of Lot 
2 Block 1 of Kirby Commons as proposed by the applicant, for the following reasons: 
 

1. The proposed replat will not cause any adverse impacts on the surrounding 
properties.  
 

2. This request is in conformance with the comprehensive plan.   
 

3. This request is in conformance with the Land Use and Urban Development 
Ordinance as well as the Unified Development Code.   

 
SUPPORTING DOCUMENTS:  

 Vicinity Map 
 Land Use Map 
 Aerial Map 
 Partial Replat of Lot 2, Block 1 of Kirby Commons 

 



Vicinity Map 

Partial Replat of Lot 2, 
Block 1 of Kirby 

Commons 



Future Land Use Map 

Partial Replat of Lot 2, 
Block 1 of Kirby 

Commons 



Aerial Map 

Partial Replat of Lot 2, 
Block 1 of Kirby 

Commons 





P&Z AGENDA  
ITEM  

 
 

 
 
 

F 
 
 

 



City of Pearland 

3519 Liberty Drive, Pearland, Texas  77581 
Ph: (281) 652-1768  |  Fax: (281) 652-1702   |   www.cityofpearland.com 

   

 
 

 

 

    City of Pearland 
   

 

P&Z AGENDA REQUEST  
 
 

TO:    Planning & Zoning Commission 
 
REQUESTOR:   Ian Clowes 
 
DATE:    04/08/2013 
 
AGENDA ITEM SUBJECT: Preliminary Plat of Covington Estates 

 
 

 Old Business         New Business     Discussion Item    Workshop 
 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Regular P&Z meetings are held on the first and third Monday of every month. This form must be received 6 
calendar days prior to the meeting in order to be included on the agenda. 

Summary:  A request by John English of Rekha Engineering, Inc., applicant, on 
behalf of R. West Development, Inc., owner for approval of a Preliminary Plat of 
Covington Estates, a 20 lot subdivision on 9.64 acres of land, generally located at 
2014 Hillhouse Rd. 

 

 

 

 

 
Staff Recommendation:  Approval 

Reviewed by: 
Harold Ellis 
__________________ 
 
Date Reviewed: 
04/09/2013 
__________________ 
 



 
 

P&Z 4/15/2013 
Preliminary Plat – Covington Estates. 

Page 1 
 

PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION 
MEETING OF APRIL 15, 2013 
 

 
PRELIMINARY PLAT OF COVINGTON ESTATES 
 

A request by John English of Rekha Engineering, Inc., applicant and R. West 
Development, Inc., owner, for approval of the Preliminary Plat of Covington 
Estates, a 20 lot subdivision on a 9.64 acre tract of land, generally located at 
2014 Hillhouse Road. 
 
Legal Description: A tract of land containing 4.82 acres known as Tract 20-A, 
situated in Lot 20 of the Allison Richey Gulf Coast Home Company Subdivision, 
Abstract No. 506, as recorded in Volume 2, Page 23 of the Brazoria County Map 
Records, and; 

 
A tract of land containing 4.82 acres known as Tract 20, situated in Lot 20 of the 
Allison Richey Gulf Coast Home Company Subdivision, Abstract No. 506, as 
recorded in Volume 2, Page 23 of the Brazoria County Map Records. 
 

           General Location: 2014 Hillhouse Road 
  

 
SUMMARY:  This is a request for a Preliminary Plat of Covington Estates. The property 
contains a total of 9.64 acres with 20 proposed lots, a pocket park, trails, enhanced 
entry, and large detention reserve that will be amenitized with a fountain, trail, and 
gazebo. The site has an approved Cluster Plan, detailed later in this report, which is 
intended to allow flexibility with lot sizes for the developer and in return the applicant 
shall provide open space and amenities which are not achieved through the application 
of minimum lot standards.   
 
APPROVED CLUSTER PLAN:  The Covington Estates Cluster Plan was approved on 
February 18, 2013.  The property is currently zoned Suburban Residential – 12,000 sq. 
ft.  (SR-12). The Cluster plan allows the applicant to deviate from the standard SR-12 lot 
sizes in return for additional green space and amenities.  Furthermore, a variance was 
approved by the Planning and Zoning Commission allowing for an extended length cul-
de-sac.  The current site plan for the approved Cluster Development Plan indicates a 
cul-de-sac length over 600’, which is the maximum permitted in section 3.2.6.4 (l) of the 
Unified Development Code.  Through the approval of the Cluster Development Plan, the 
Planning and Zoning Commission granted a variance, allowing for the proposed cul-de-
sac length to extend to 750’.  
 
The typical proposed lot size for the Cluster Development plan is 84.5’ x 140,’ which 
equals 11,830 square feet. The minimum lot size in a traditional SR-12 development 

 



 
 

P&Z 4/15/2013 
Preliminary Plat – Covington Estates. 

Page 2 
 

would be 100’ X 90’ and 12,000 square feet. The density being proposed is 2.08 units 
per acre.  This information is further illustrated in the table below: 
 
     Approved Cluster SR-12   

Minimum lot area:  10,961 sq ft  12,000 sq ft  
Minimum lot width:  84.5’*   100’   
Minimum lot depth:  140’*   90’   
Density (units/acre)  2.08   2.3    

 
*typical lot width and depth for the approved Cluster Development Plan. 
 
UNIFIED DEVELOPMENT CODE:  The subject property is currently zoned Suburban 
Residential-12 (SR-12) Cluster.  The approved cluster for this site allows the developer 
to vary the size of lots as long as the overall density of the development does not go 
over 2.3 dwelling units an acre, as specified in Section 2.2.4.3 of the Unified 
Development Code.  All requirements of the Unified Development Code that are not 
deviated from through the approved Cluster Plan will be met.  
 
SURROUNDING ZONING AND LAND USES:  
 

  Zoning Land Use 
North RE Residential Estate 
South RE Residential Estate 
East RE  Residential Estate 
West R-3 Single Family Residential-3 (R-3) 

 
CONFORMANCE WITH THE COMPREHENSIVE PLAN:  The Future Land Use 
designation for the subject land is Suburban Residential Development.  The approved 
Comprehensive Plan further indicates that corresponding lot sizes for Suburban 
Residential would be 10,000, 12,000, or 15,000 square foot lots.  Therefore, the 
proposed development is in conformance with the Comprehensive Plan. 
 
PLATTING STATUS: This is the first plat for the subject property.  A final plat will be 
required after the completion and acceptance of all public infrastructure and amenities 
and prior to the release of any building permits.   
 
CONFORMANCE WITH THE THOROUGHFARE PLAN:  The subject contains frontage 
on Hillhouse Road, a minor collector with a minimum right-of-way of 60’.  Hillhouse 
Road is currently constructed as a two lane road, with a width of approximately 20’.  
 
AVAILABILITY OF UTILITIES:  Public water and sewer are available for this site, but 
will have to be extended to the site by the applicant.  
 
ADDITONAL COMMENTS:  This request has been reviewed by the city’s Development 



 
 

P&Z 4/15/2013 
Preliminary Plat – Covington Estates. 

Page 3 
 

Review Committee and there were no additional comments.  
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  Staff recommends approval of the Preliminary Plat of 
Covington Estates as proposed by the applicant, for the following reasons: 
 

1. The proposed preliminary plat will not cause any adverse impacts on the 
surrounding properties.  
 

2. This request is in conformance with the comprehensive plan.   
 

3. This request is in conformance with the approved Cluster Development Plan and 
the Unified Development Code.   
 

 
SUPPORTING DOCUMENTS:  

 Vicinity and Zoning Map 
 Future Land Use Plan 
 Aerial Map 
 Preliminary Plat of Covington Estates 
 Cluster Plan Exhibit 

 



Zoning and Vicinity Map
Preliminary Plat of
Covington Estates

RE

C-MU

R-2

R-3

PUD

SR-12

R-1

GB

CULLEN PKWY

HAWK RD

HUGHES RANCH RD

HILLHOUSE RD

NORFOLK DR
LINDA LN

CRYSTAL LAKE CIR

PORTSMOUTH DR

STERLING DR

BROOKNEY ST

TENNYSON DR

CANTON DR

TEAL CT

¯07014035 Feet

This product is for information purposes and
may not have been prepared for or be suitable
for legal, engineering, or surveying purposes.
It does not represent an on-the-ground survey
and represents only the approximate relative
location of property boundaries.



FLUP Map
Preliminary Plat of
Covington Estates

Cullen Mixed Use District

Medium Density Residential

D-10,000sf Lots (Suburban Res)

Public / Semi-Public

Business Commercial
Parks

Major Nodes

CULLEN PKWY

HAWK RD

HUGHES RANCH RD

HILLHOUSE RDNORFOLK DR
LINDA LN

PORTSMOUTH DR

STERLING DR

BROOKNEY ST

TENNYSON DR

CANTON DR

TEAL CT

ADDISON DR

¯07014035 Feet

This product is for information purposes and
may not have been prepared for or be suitable
for legal, engineering, or surveying purposes.
It does not represent an on-the-ground survey
and represents only the approximate relative
location of property boundaries.



Aerial Map
Preliminary Plat of
Covington Estates

CULLEN PKWY

HAWK RD

HUGHES RANCH RD

HILLHOUSE RD

NORFOLK DR
LINDA LN

CRYSTAL LAKE CIR

PORTSMOUTH DR

STERLING DR

BROOKNEY ST

TENNYSON DR

CANTON DR

TEAL CT

ADDISON DR

¯07014035 Feet

This product is for information purposes and
may not have been prepared for or be suitable
for legal, engineering, or surveying purposes.
It does not represent an on-the-ground survey
and represents only the approximate relative
location of property boundaries.









































P&Z AGENDA  
ITEM  

 
 

 
 
 

G 
 
 

 



City of Pearland 

3519 Liberty Drive, Pearland, Texas  77581 
Ph: (281) 652-1768  |  Fax: (281) 652-1702   |   www.cityofpearland.com 

   

 
 

 

 

    City of Pearland 
   

 

P&Z AGENDA REQUEST  
 
 

TO:    Planning & Zoning Commission 
 
REQUESTOR:   Ian Clowes 
 
DATE:    04/08/2013 
 
AGENDA ITEM SUBJECT: Waiver Request - Final Plat of Preserve at Highland Glen 

Section 2 
 

 
 Old Business         New Business     Discussion Item    Workshop 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Summary:  A request by Rene Rodriguez, from LJA Engineering, applicant, on 
behalf of Beazer Homes Texas, LP, owner, for approval of a Waiver of Decision of 
Time for the Final Plat of Preserve at Highland Glen, Sec. 2, a 143 lot single-family 
residential subdivision, to allow for the completion and acceptance of the 
infrastructure, generally located a half mile northeast of the intersection of Barry Rose 
and Pearland Parkway. 
 

 

 

 
Staff Recommendation:  Approval  

Reviewed by: 
 
__________________ 
 
Date Reviewed: 
 
__________________ 
 





P&Z AGENDA  
ITEM  

 
 

 
  
     H

 
 
 

 



City of Pearland 

3519 Liberty Drive, Pearland, Texas  77581 
Ph: (281) 652-1768  |  Fax: (281) 652-1702   |   www.cityofpearland.com 

   

 
 

 

 

    City of Pearland 
   

 

P&Z AGENDA REQUEST  
 
 

TO:    Planning & Zoning Commission 
 
REQUESTOR:   Ian Clowes, Planner II 
 
DATE:    04/08/2013 
 
AGENDA ITEM SUBJECT: Final Plat of the Preserve at Highland Glen, Sec. 2 

 
 

   Old Business           New Business     Discussion Item    Workshop 
 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Summary:  A request by Rene Rodriguez, from LJA Engineering, applicant, on 
behalf of Beazer Homes Texas, LP, owner, for approval of a Final Plat of Preserve at 
Highland Glen, Sec. 2, a 143 lot single-family residential subdivision, generally 
located a half mile northeast of the intersection of Barry Rose and Pearland Parkway.  

 

 

 

 
Staff Recommendation:  No action required with the approval of a Waiver of 

Decision. 
 

Reviewed by: 
 
__________________ 
 
Date Reviewed: 
 
__________________ 
 



 
 

P&Z 04/15/2013 
Final Plat – Preserve at Highland Glen Sec. 2 

Page 1 
 

PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION 
MEETING OF APRIL 15, 2013 
 

 
FINAL PLAT OF PRESERVE AT HIGHLAND GLEN SECTION 2 
 

A request by Rene Rodriguez, from LJA Engineering, applicant, on behalf of 
Beazer Homes Texas, LP, owner, for approval of a Final Plat of Preserve at 
Highland Glen, Sec. 2, a 143 lot single-family residential subdivision, to wit 
 
Legal Description: Being 36.5 acres of land located in the Derril H.M. Hunter 
Survey, Abstract 36, Harris County, Texas, more particularly being a portion of a 
called 56.233 acre tract conveyed to Beazer Homes Texas, L.P., by an 
instrument of record in File No. 20110092185, Official Public Records of Said 
Harris County, Texas (H.C.O.P.R.R.P.), being a portion of a called 61.217 acre 
tract conveyed to Beazer Homes Texas, L.P., by an instrument of record in File 
No. 20110092165, H.C.O.P.R.R.P., an undivided one-half (1/2) interest in said 
56.233 acres and said 61.217 acres conveyed to Lennar Homes of Texas Land 
and Construction, Ltd by instrument of record in File No. 20110407994, 
H.C.O.P.R.R.P. 
 
General Location: A half mile northeast of the intersection of Hughes and   
Pearland Parkway. 
  

 
SUMMARY:  This is a request for a Final Plat of Preserve at Highland Glen Sec. 2 a 
143 lot single-family residential subdivision on approximately 36.5 acres.  This proposed 
subdivision is the second of three phases of an overall Cluster Plan for The Preserve at 
Highland Glen.  The Cluster Plan was approved on March 7, 2011 with an overall area 
of 130.5 acres and a total build out of 285 single-family lots.  The Cluster Plan is 
intended to allow some flexibility with lot sizes for the developer and in return they 
provide a larger amount of green space including pocket parks, trails, and amenitized 
detention areas. 
 
SURROUNDING ZONING AND LAND USES:  
 

  Zoning Land Use 
North Houston ETJ Single Family Residential 
South PUD (Stonebridge), 

R-3 – Medium Density Res. 
Single Family Residential            

(Stonebridge Estates) 
East Houston ETJ  Single Family Residential 
West PUD (Lakes of Highland Glen) Vacant Land, Single Family 

Residential 

 



 
 

P&Z 04/15/2013 
Final Plat – Preserve at Highland Glen Sec. 2 

Page 2 
 

UNIFIED DEVELOPMENT CODE:  The subject property is currently zoned as Single-
Family Residential (R-1) Cluster.  A cluster development plan was approved on March 
7, 2011, which allows the developer to vary the size of lots as long as the overall density 
of the development does not go over 3.2 dwelling units an acre.  This proposed 
development is in accordance to the Cluster Development Plan for the Preserve at 
Highland Glen.  The minimum lot sizes and density requirements for the Single-Family 
Residential-1   (R-1) are as follows: 
 
            R-1                   Cluster Average 
 Lot Area:         8,800 sq. ft.       7,800 sq. ft.  
 Lot Depth:         80’            65’ 
 Lot Width:         90’            120’ 
 Density for Cluster Development:      3.2 units/acre     2.66 units/acre 
 
 
PLATTING STATUS: This request is for the Final Plat for The Preserve at Highland 
Glen Section Two, which has 143 of the total 285 single family residential lots for the 
development.  The Preliminary Plat for this section was approved on August 20, 2012. 
 
CONFORMANCE WITH THE COMPREHENSIVE PLAN:  The Future Land Use 
designation for the subject land is Suburban Residential Development.  This land use 
designation is in compliance with the Comprehensive Plan as this property is zoned R-1 
(Single Family Residential-1). 
 
CONFORMANCE WITH THE THOROUGHFARE PLAN:  The subject property is the 
second phase of The Preserve at Highland Glen which currently has frontage on the 
newly constructed Hughes Road (Barry Rose expansion), a secondary thoroughfare 
with sufficient width for right-of-way of 100 feet.  The City constructed the extension 
(including the involved bridge) from Pearland Pkwy to the first entrance into the 
proposed development.  The remainder was constructed by the developer of Ridge 
Creek, but is not needed for the proposed Preserve at Highland Glen.  Additionally, the 
property has access from existing Azure Brook Lane, located in the Clear Brook 
subdivision, outside the City limits of Pearland.  Interior roads within the subdivision 
have and will continue to be built to the local road standards of the City of Pearland with 
a right-of-way of 60’.                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                      
 
AVAILABILITY OF UTILITIES:  The subject parcel is served by public water and sewer 
lines.  These lines have been constructed along with the required infrastructure within 
Section One of this subdivision and will be extended to Section Two. 
 
IMPACT ON EXISTING AND FUTURE DEVELOPMENT: The proposed Final Plat 
should not have any significant adverse impacts on any surrounding structures or uses. 
This would also permit the applicant to develop the property in overall accordance with 
the Future Land Use Plan recommendations, and approved cluster plan. 
 
 



 
 

P&Z 04/15/2013 
Final Plat – Preserve at Highland Glen Sec. 2 

Page 3 
 

 
 
STATUS OF AMMENITIES: The following amenities were constructed in Section 1 of 
the Preserve at Highland Glen. 
 

1. Linear Park with Trail and Seating (6’ wide concrete). (Complete) 
2. Pocket Park One (Complete) 
3. Improved drainage ditch with landscaping. (Complete) 

 
The following amenities will be constructed in Section 2 of the Preserve at Highland 
Glen. 
           

1.  A one (1) acre pocket park is planned for phase two which will include seating 
and a meandering trail. 

 
The pocket park for Section 2 is required to be constructed within 120 days of the 
approval of the Final Plat. 
 
The required trail along Clear Creek and the final pocket park will be constructed as part 
of Section 3 and will be required to be completed within 120 days after the recordation 
of the final plat.   
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  Staff recommends approval of this Final Plat of 
Preserve at Highland Glen as proposed by the applicant for the following reasons: 

 
1. Approval of the Final Plat would be in conformance with the surrounding zoning 

and future land uses. 
 

2. The Final Plat will not have any significant adverse impact on the surrounding 
properties and developments. 
 

3. The proposed development will be in conformance to the approved Cluster 
Development Plan and the guidelines of the Unified Development Code. 
 

 
 

SUPPORTING DOCUMENTS:  
 Vicinity and Zoning Map 
 Future Land Use Plan 
 Aerial Photograph 
 Landscaping Exhibit 
 Open Space Exhibit 
 Final Plat of the Preserve at Highland Glen Section Two 
 Amenity Exhibit and Timeline 

 



Zoning and Vicinity Map
Final Plat of Preserve
at Highland Glen
Section 2

R-1
PUD

R-1 CLUSTER

R-3

OP

GB

HOUSTON

¯09018045 Feet

This product is for information purposes and
may not have been prepared for or be suitable
for legal, engineering, or surveying purposes.
It does not represent an on-the-ground survey
and represents only the approximate relative
location of property boundaries.



FLUP Map
Final Plat of Preserve
at Highland Glen
Section 2

A-1/2 Ac. Lots (Suburban Res)

Parks

Low Density Residential

Medium Density Residential

Public / Semi-Public

Retail, Offices and Services

Offices HOUSTON

¯09018045 Feet

This product is for information purposes and
may not have been prepared for or be suitable
for legal, engineering, or surveying purposes.
It does not represent an on-the-ground survey
and represents only the approximate relative
location of property boundaries.



Aerial Map
Final Plat of Preserve
at Highland Glen
Section 2

¯09018045 Feet

This product is for information purposes and
may not have been prepared for or be suitable
for legal, engineering, or surveying purposes.
It does not represent an on-the-ground survey
and represents only the approximate relative
location of property boundaries.





THE PRESERVE AT HIGHLAND GLEN

Beazer Homes Texas

Programming Diagram

Landscape Improvements

Pearland, Texas

CONCEPTUAL PLAN

APRIL 8, 2013

CCA PROJECT NO. 110-042

THIS DRAWING IS CONCEPTUAL IN NATURE AND IS SUBJECT TO CHANGE.

NO WARRANTIES OR REPRESENTATIONS, EXPRESSED OR IMPLIED CONCERNING

THE ACTUAL DESIGN, LOCATION OR CHARACTER OF THIS PLAN ARE INTENDED

THIS PLAN IS NOT FOR PERMIT OR CONSTRUCTION PURPOSES.

DETENTION

DETENTION

DETENTION

BUILDER WALK/CONNECTOR - 4' WIDE

(CONCRETE)

COMMUNITY AMENITY TRAIL - 6' WIDE

(CONCRETE)

FUTURE CITY OF PEARLAND TRAIL -

10' WIDE.  MATERIAL AND LOCATION

ARE TO BE DETERMINED AT A LATER

DATE.

CONNECTIVITY LEGEND

GREENSPACE PLANTINGS

GREENWAY/PARK ZONE

DITCH ZONE

DETENTION ZONE

- 190,000 SF OF NATIVE GRASS &

  WILDFLOWER SEED

- 25,000 SF OF AQUATIC PLANTING

- 273 CALIPER INCHES OF TREES

- AREAS TO BE GRADED AND SEEDED

  WITH NATIVE GRASSES

- WHERE POSSIBLE, EXISTING TREES

  TO BE PRESERVED

- 8,000  SF OF SHRUBS AND

  GROUNDCOVER

- 640 CALIPER INCHES OF TREES

⅊

⅊

⅊

PHASE I

PHASE II

PHASE II



P&Z AGENDA  
ITEM  

 
 

 
  
     I

 
 
 

 



P&Z AGENDA  
ITEM  

 
 

 
 

 J
 

 
 

 

dcody
Typewritten Text
DISCUSSION ITEMS1.  COMMISSIONER'S ACTIVITY REPORT2.  NEXT P&Z/WORKSHOP (CLUSTER DEVELOPMENT) - MAY 6, 20133.  NEXT JOINT PUBLIC HEARING - MAY 20, 2013



 
 
 
 
 

ADJOURN  
 

MEETING 


	1. P&Z Agenda Coversheet.pdf
	2. April 15, 2013 P&Z Agenda
	3. APPROVAL OF MINUTES
	4. P&Z Minutes 040113
	5. EXCUSE ABSENCE
	6. NEW BUSINESS
	7. AGENDA ITEM A
	8. CUP 2013-02 Packet
	2. CUP 2013-02 Staff Report.pdf
	3. CUP 2013-02 Vicinity & Zoning Map
	4. CUP 2013-02 Abutter Map
	5. CUP 2013-102 Abutters List
	6. CUP 2013-02 FLUP Map
	7. CUP 2013-02 Aerial
	8. CUP 2013-02 Applicant Packet

	9. AGENDA ITEM B
	10. CUP 2013-03 Packet
	2.  CUP 2013-03 Staff Report.pdf
	3. CUP 2013-03 Vicinity & Zoning Map
	4. CUP 2013-03 Abutter Map
	5. CUP 2013-03 Abutter List
	6. CUP 2013-03 FLUP Map
	7. CUP 2013-03 Aerial
	8. 2013-03 Application Packet

	11. AGENDA ITEM C
	12. Zone Change 2013-06Z
	2. Zone Change 2013-06Z Staff Report.pdf
	3. Zone Change 2013-06Z Vicinity & Zoning Map
	4. Zone Change 2013-06Z Abutter Map
	5. Zone Change 2013-06Z Abutters List
	6. Zone Change 2013-06Z FLUP Map
	7. Zone Change 2013-06Z Aerial Map
	8. Zone Change 2013-06Z Application Packet

	13. AGENDA ITEM D
	14. Zone change 2013-07Z
	2. Zone Change 2013-07Z Satff Report.pdf
	3. Zone Change 2013-07Z Vicinity and Zoning Map
	4. Zone Change 2013-07Z Abutter Map
	5. Zone Change 2013-07Z Abutters List

	15. AGENDA ITEM E
	16. Kirby Commons Packet
	1. Kirby Commons Agenda Request- P&Z.pdf
	2. P & Z Kirby Commons
	3. Vicinity
	4. Futurelanduse
	5. Aerial
	6. Partial Replat Lot 2 Block 1 Kirby Commons

	17. AGENDA ITEM F
	18. Covington Estates Packet
	1. Covington Estates Agenda Request.pdf
	2. Covington Estates Staff Report
	3. Vicinity
	4. Futurelanduse
	5. Aerial
	6. Covington Estates Plat
	7. Covington Estates Cluster Plan

	19. AGENDA ITEM G
	20. Waiver of Decision Preserve at Highland Glen 2 Packet
	1. Preserve at Highland Glen 2 Waiver Request.pdf
	2. Waiver Letter

	21. AGENDA ITEM H
	22. Preserve at Highland Glen 2 Packet
	3. Agenda Final Plat of Preserve at HG 2
	4. P & Z Final Plat Preserve at Highland Glen Sec. 2
	5. Zoning Map
	6. Future land use map
	7. Aerial Map
	8. Plat of Preserve at Highland Glen Section 2 Final
	9. Amenity Exhibit and Timeline

	23. AGENDA ITEM I
	24. AGENDA ITEM J
	25. ADJOURN MEETING



